1950

# Joseph Judkins, Dan J. Miller, Frank Oborn and Adrian De Bloois v. Boyd N. Fronk : Brief of Appellant

Utah Supreme Court

## STATEMENT OF FACTS

Appellant on June 6th and 7th, 1945, contracted to purchase real property on the Northeast corner of 20th Street and Harrison Boulevard in Ogden, Utah, (Tr. 28, 30, 90) for the purpose of erecting a gasoline service station thereon, (Tr. 30) subsequently receiving deed therefor and quieting title to a portion thereof. (Tr. 90) On June 7, 1945, he paid the fee and obtained from Ogden City a building permit to construct such service station. (Tr. 3, 31) At the time of issuance of such permit, the zoning ordinances of Ogden City in force and effect allowed use of real property in that area of which this property is a part, for such service station and store purposes. (Tr. 3, 4) The Building Code of Ogden City, in effect at the time of issuance of the permit to appellant, contained a provision that "Every permit issued by the Building Official under the provisions of this Code shall expire by limitation and become null and void, if the building or work authorized

by such permit is not commenced within 60 days from the date of such permit, or if the building or work authorized by such permit is suspended or abandoned at any time after the work is commenced for sixty days.” (Tr. 27) The building permit issued to appellant, had a provision, written on the face thereof, that “This permit is void if work is not commenced within sixty days, or if work is suspended for sixty days.” (Tr. 3, 31) The building Code also provides for a Board of Examiners and Appeals with power to interpret its provisions, with specific power to interpret it in cases where a “manifest injustice might be done”. (Tr. 3) However, Ogden City has never appointed such a Board of Examiners and Appeals as so provided for in the Building Code.

In reliance upon his building permit, the appellant immediately commenced work and expended money toward the erection of the service station. (Tr. 28) In August, 1945, he mortgaged his home for \$1,400.00 for funds for the station. (Tr. 42, 49, 67) Each month from and including June, 1945, to and including March, 1946, he performed work on the premises toward building the station. (Tr. 27 to 31, 39 to 68) Then, in the early months of 1946, he called on various lumber and supply houses for materials and was informed that he must have a Government priority number. (Tr. 51) He immediately made application for priorities to the Civilian Production Administration, both at its Ogden and Salt Lake City offices, which application was denied. (Tr. 52)

On August 12th, 1946, Ogden City passed an ordinance amending its zoning ordinances to make use of real property in the area in which appellant's said



premises were located for a store or service station, a non-conforming use. (Tr. 3) This ordinance was not retroactive. (Tr. 3, 4)

On July 25, 1947, the controls over building materials were terminated by the executive order of the President of the United States, (Tr. 67, 68) but shortage of such materials and great difficulty in obtaining them continued until to or after October, 1948. (Tr. 31 to 38 inc., 68 to 76). On October 13, 1948, appellant, believing that now he could get materials, applied to the Board of City Commissioners of Ogden City for a renewal of his building permit of June 7, 1945, (Tr. 6, 7, 56, 57) and after hearing had during which he explained his difficulties regarding building materials to the Board of City Commissioners, (Tr. 66) this Board on October 26, 1948, granted his application and renewed said building permit. (Tr. 7, 8, 56, 57) On November 23, 1948, respondents protested to the Board of City Commissioners and hearing on their protest was continued to November 30, 1948, (Tr. 7, 8) when respondents and their counsel were present and appellant and his counsel were present, and after such hearing the City Commission refused to rescind its action in renewing appellant's original building permit. (Tr. 7, 8)

That up to October 13, 1948, the appellant had expended on the land in question in relation to work in connection with construction of the station, an amount in excess of \$1,200.00, and since the 26th of October, 1948, the date of renewal of his permit, he caused further sums to be expended in excess of \$900.00. (Tr. 59)



Respondents brought this action seeking an injunction against appellant to restrain him from constructing the station and from a judgment in their favor, appellant appeals.

The trial of this case was had by the District Court on the 25th day of November, 1949, but the Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law were not entered therein until the 23rd day of September, 1950.

## ARGUMENT

### POINT 1

BY RECEIVING A VALID BUILDING PERMIT FROM OGDEN CITY, PERFORMING WORK THEREUNDER, AND EXPENDING FUNDS IN RELIANCE THEREON, APPELLANT ACQUIRED A VESTED RIGHT TO CONSTRUCT A SERVICE STATION, AND COULD NOT BE AFFECTED BY A SUBSEQUENT ZONING ORDINANCE ENACTED BY OGDEN CITY.

There is no dispute of the fact that the appellant was issued a building permit on June 7, 1945, for the purpose of constructing a service station upon his land, and the findings of the Court so hold. It is not disputed that at the time of issuance of the appellant's permit, it was lawful under the Zoning Ordinances of Ogden City to erect a service station in the area in which appellant's land is situated. In reliance upon this permit, appellant performed a great deal of work and expended large sums of money prior to the time, in August, 1946, when Ogden City amended its Zoning Ordinance to prohibit such use in this area, the amended Ordinance not being retroactive.

It is the overwhelming weight of authority in the United States that one who thus receives a valid building permit, performs work and expends money in reliance thereon, acquires a vested right to complete the construction. The right is unaffected by subsequent amendments of Zoning Ordinances. 40 ALR at page 928 states the rule as follows:

“By the weight of authority a municipal building permit or license may not arbitrarily be revoked, particularly where, on the faith of it, the owner has incurred material expense.”  
There many cases are annotated which follow the weight of authority.

In an annotation commencing at page 500 and particularly at page 505 et. seq. of 138 ALR cases are cited and discussed, which hold that one who has obtained a building permit or license and has proceeded to act under it, has thereby acquired a vested right which is protected against disturbance by a subsequent amendment of the Zoning Ordinance. Among the cases cited in this annotation at page 506, is *New York State Investing Co. v. Brady*, 214 App. Div. 592, 212 NYS 605, where it was held by the New York Court that an amendment of the building zone resolution prohibiting the erection of a gasoline filling station in a certain location did not cut off the right of the owner or lessee of such premises to proceed under a permit for the construction of such a station where the permit was obtained and work had been commenced thereunder and a large amount of money expended in connection therewith prior to the adoption of the amendment.

Also, in the case of *Sandenburgh v. Michigamme Oil Co.* 249 Mich. 372, 228 NW 707 it was held that after property in a business zone had been purchased for the purpose of constructing a gasoline filling station thereon, a building permit obtained, and substantial work performed thereunder, the city was precluded from revoking the permit and later amending the zoning ordinance with reference solely to this property and was precluded from giving such amendment retroactive effect.

In another New York case set out in this annotation, *Pelham View Apartments, v. Switzer*, 130 Misc. 545, 224 NYS 56, it was held that one who had secured a building permit for an apartment house upon a site where apartment houses were allowed by the zoning ordinance then in effect, and in reliance upon such permit, purchased the lot, employed an architect, had the property surveyed, and excavated the cellar, could not be deprived of the vested right thus acquired by a subsequent revocation of the permit pursuant to an amendment of the zoning ordinance. The Court said:

“Where a permit to build a building has been acted upon, and where the owner has, as in this instance, proceeded to incur obligations and in good faith to proceed to erect the building, such rights are then vested property rights, protected by the Federal and State Constitutions . . . While it is unfortunate that the erection of this apartment house may be distasteful to people living in the neighborhood, and while perhaps it is unfortunate that their property should be thus affected, yet the protection of such rights must be legally done, and the public officials

representing the people cannot legally be permitted to change the zoning law, and cancel a permit previously issued under the original zoning act, where an innocent purchaser of real estate has in good faith acted upon such official action of the city, and has thereby acquired vested rights under his permit. This case must be distinguished from the many other cases where permits were not obtained in good faith, but merely in anticipation of an amendment to the zoning law. The facts in the present case indicate entire good faith upon the part of the purchaser, as is evidenced by the large sums of money that were paid by him on the strength of the presumed legality of his original permit. It would be nothing short of confiscation, and a complete disregard of constitutional rights, if a municipality could revoke a building permit issued under the conditions as presented in this case.”

Likewise in another case cited in the annotation, a California case which went to the Supreme Court of the United States, *Dobbins v. Los Angeles*, 195 US 223, 49 L ed 169, 25 S Ct. 18, where an amendment of a municipal ordinance prohibiting the erection or maintenance of gas works except within certain prescribed limits which excluded property previously included therein, after it had been purchased for the purpose of erecting gas works thereon and after such erection had been commenced under a permit from the Board of Fire Commissioners, was held to be an arbitrary interference with property rights protected by the Fourteenth Amendment to the Federal Constitution and not justified as an exercise of the police power.

In the case of Wikstrom v. City of Laramie, et al (Wyoming) 262 Pac. 22, it is stated:

“It may, however, not be out of place in passing, to state that, as a general rule, where a City Council, or the proper city officer, in absence of fraud grants a permit for the construction of a building, and the party acting in the faith thereof commences the erection of a building, he acquires something more than a mere license, something in the nature of a vested right, and the permit cannot then be revoked by the City.”

In the case of London vs. Robinson et al (Cal.) 271 Pac. 921, it was held that

a zoning ordinance enacted by a municipality applied only from the date on which it took effect.

In City of Lee Falls v. Fisk, 24 NYS 2d 460 (1941) HN 12, a prospective purchaser of real estate disclosed to City officials that he intended to purchase realty and erect a gas station thereon. He was informed there was no ordinance preventing the erection of such station. Thereafter he purchased the realty, receiving a mortgage loan to finance the erection of the station, entered into a lease, notified tenants in houses located on the realty to move therefrom and made an agreement with a wrecking company to raze the houses. The Court held that the purchaser of the realty acquired vested rights of which he was not divested by action of the common council of the city in thereafter enacting a zoning ordinance which would prevent the erection of such a station on the realty in question.

In the case of Trans-oceanic Oil Corporation vs. City of Santa Barbara (Cal. 1948) 194 Pac. 2d 148, it



was held that a holder of a building permit, who actually commences work upon a building and incurs liabilities for work and material, acquires a "vested property right" which he is entitled to have protected against arbitrary revocation of permit, and also holds that where a permit has been regularly issued and rights have vested thereunder, the adoption of a zoning ordinance prohibiting the permitted use of property does not ipso facto revoke the permit.

Atlas vs. Dick 81 NYS 2d 126 (1948) holds: One who has merely obtained a building permit is bound by any change in zoning ordinance made before he proceeds with construction of building thereunder, but where operations have been begun and contracts let under a permit valid when issued permittee thereby acquires vested rights which cannot be taken from him by subsequent modification of zoning ordinance.

## POINT II.

APPELLANT DID NOT LOSE HIS VESTED RIGHT TO CONSTRUCT A SERVICE STATION WHEN NATIONAL WAR EMERGENCY LEGISLATION PREVENTED HIM FROM OBTAINING PRIORITIES FOR BUILDING MATERIALS.

The evidence in this case and also the findings clearly show that the appellant exercised all possible effort to obtain building materials to proceed with the construction of the station. He went to the Anderson Lumber Company, Wheelwright Lumber Company, Burton Walker Lumber Company in Ogden, and also went to Ed White Electric and Ogden Electric Company to

obtain materials. (Tr. 51) Finding of the Court substantiates this evidence. Although necessity for obtaining priorities was terminated July 25, 1947, the evidence before the court shows that it was not possible to obtain many materials needed in the construction of the service station, such as electric wiring, steel, re-inforcing iron, cement, metal sashes. (Tr. 68, 69, 70 and 71)

George Ward, Manager of the Anderson Lumber Company testified that after July 25, 1947, the supply of cement was so short that even after July 25, 1947, and through 1948, only about one-tenth of the demand for cement could be supplied, and that cement, upon a few occasions, was shipped from California into this market to help supply part of the trade. (Tr. 70) As to steel re-inforcing bars and metal sashes, they were almost non-existent during 1947 and 1948. (Tr. 71)

Mr. Joseph Behling, representative of the Salt Lake Hardware Company, dealers in builders lines, builders hardware, tanks machine pipe fittings, plumbing fittings and electrical equipment and wiring, testified that all of these articles were very difficult to obtain in the years 1945, 1946 and 1947, and that some of them started to ease off in the middle of 1948, but critical shortages did continue even into the year 1949, such as pipe and other steel products and tank plate. (Tr. 32-33-34).

The testimony of Mr. Ward and Mr. Behling is uncontradicted. However, even were there no such testimony in this case, it is a matter of common knowledge of which the Court may take judicial notice that critical shortages in building materials continued through the year 1948. Under such conditions we submit that it cannot reasonably be said that the appellant did not use



due diligence because he did not apply for renewal of his permit until October 13, 1948. Very clearly it was not until then that an individual such as the appellant, could reasonably believe that he might then stand some chance of getting materials.

The findings prepared by the respondent in Paragraph 13 sets forth certain construction under permits issued by Ogden City, which was completed during the years 1945, 1946 and 1947. There is nothing in the record to show whether or not the builders had priorities issued by proper authority, but it must be presumed that they did have such priorities.

In Paragraph 14 of the findings is set forth certain construction which was completed during the years 1947 and 1948. Likewise in relation to at least some of these where the permit issued prior to July 25, 1947, it must be presumed that such building had priorities and as to the few remaining, it does not appear in the record how or where materials were obtained, so that these findings have little evidentiary weight as to the facts in this case.

The building permit issued by Ogden City to appellant created a contract under which appellant had a vested right to construct a service station. He was prevented from performing the time requirements in the permit because of the national war emergency and his inability to so comply is legally excused by reason of the paramount war emergency. The principal of law governing such situations is well and clearly enunciated in the case of *National Grain Yeast Corp. v. City of Crystal Lake*, 147 F 2d 711 (CCA 7th 1945), in which the Federal Circuit Court of Appeals says:

“Nor can the court, nor should the defendant, ignore the effect of the World War on efforts of parties to comply with contract obligations and requirements.

“The extent to which parties may justifiably expect relief in a court of equity upon a showing that the failure to perform was because of inability to secure priorities, etc., due to the War, presents a question upon which final judicial pronouncement has not been made.

“It is our belief that courts of equity will not close the door of relief to a party who has diligently and in good faith attempted to complete its contract, but who has been wholly or in part prevented from so doing because of the first demands and requirements of the Government in the prosecution of the War.”

Also in a recent case appealed to the Circuit Court of Appeals from the Federal District Court of Utah, *New York Life Insurance Company v. Durham*, 166 F2d 874, the Court states the following principal of law:

“Private rights, when affected by the incidence of War, are governed by determinations of political departments of government, and courts will usually condition private rights whether resting in contract or otherwise, in order to give full effect to the exigencies of War.”

### POINT III

BOARD OF CITY COMMISSIONERS OF OGDEN CITY HAD POWER TO RENEW APPELLANT'S BUILDING PERMIT.

Inasmuch as appellant did not lose his vested right to construct the service station by reason of his being

prevented from proceeding because of the war emergency, most certainly the Board of City Commissioners of Ogden City had power to grant renewal of his original permit. We assert that the provisions in the Building Code, which are incorporated in the building permit, providing against abandoning the work for a period of sixty (60) days, or a period of one year with respect to a new permit at half fee, are provisions designed to obtain reasonable diligence in prosecuting work under building permits and are analogous to statutes of limitation. Provisions of limitations statutes may be waived and we submit that for the very good cause of impossibility of performance due to war restrictions the Board of City Commissioners had the power to waive these time provisions and renew appellant's permit. When the holder of a building permit is prevented from pursuing the work within the time specified by the paramount requirement of government due to war, we do not believe that it was the intention of the City and its Building Code to make the permit an absolute nullity because of such excusable failure to meet a time limitation.

The City Commission, being an administrative body, has power to review the facts upon which appellant based his application for renewal of his permit, and when it determined that those facts justified waiver of the time limitations and renewal of the permit such determination became conclusive. The Courts will not review the findings of an administrative body in such matters unless there is arbitrary abuse of discretion. Clearly there was no abuse of discretion here. The City Commission held hearings at which both respondents

and appellant were present, together with their counsel, and it was only after a careful and fair consideration, upon hearings had, that the Board of City Commissioners determined that appellant should have a renewal of his building permit. There being no arbitrary action nor abuse of discretion by this administrative body, we submit that its determination is final and cannot be reviewed by the courts.

The law in this regard is succinctly stated by McQuillin on Municipal Corporations in Volume 1, Second Edition, Paragraph 390, Page 1068 as follows:

“Assuming that the municipal authorities have acted within the orbit of their lawful authority, no principle of law is better established than that courts will not sit in review of proceedings of municipal officers and departments, especially those involving legislative discretion, in the absence of bad faith, fraud, arbitrary action or abuse of power.”

This rule is so well established that it would be a work of supererogation to cite the voluminous number of cases supporting the rule. For other general statements of the rule, we refer the Court to 42 American Jurisprudence, Paragraph 209, Page 610, et. seq., and 43 American Jurisprudence, Paragraph 255, pages 72, 73. One of the many cases stating the rule is that of Henry Bennett et al vs. State Corporation Commission, 142 Pac. 2d 810, 150 ALR 1140, a Kansas case, which holds:

“In the absence of arbitrary or capricious action or abuse of discretion by executive or administrative officers, courts do not interfere

with the performance of their acts which are discretionary in character or involve the exercise of judgment.”

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