1950

# Joseph Judkins, Dan J. Miller, Frank Oborn and Adrian De Bloois v. Boyd N. Fronk : Brief of Respondents

Utah Supreme Court

## ARGUMENT

### IN ANSWER TO APPELLANT'S POINT NO. 1

The permit of June 7, 1945, was issued under the following circumstances:

1. The War Production Board since 1942 had been exercising control over building materials denying allocations of them for commercial construction.

2. The Appellant was a carpenter and knew there were shortages of materials and a priority was necessary in the years 1943, 1944, and 1945.

3. That the permit issued provided on its face that it was to be void if work is suspended for 60 days. That the Appellant undertook the hazards attendant on this construction with the knowledge that if he were not able

to comply with the time requirements of the permit and work was suspended that the permit would be void, and rights under the permit lost.

Appellant cites 40 ALR 928.

The first paragraph of that annotation reads:

‘This annotation does not include . . . nor does it include the right to revoke a permit where the owner does not proceed in accordance with the plans for the permit.’

That Appellant failed to meet the conditions of the permit by suspending work for more than 60 days and more than 1 year, and thus lost his rights under the permit.

In none of the cases cited by Appellant under Point No. 1 does it appear that the permits issued contained time and work suspension conditions nor reveal a building code in effect providing that permits expire by limitation and become void if work is suspended for 60 days.

Appellant cites *Trans-oceanic Oil Corporation v. City of Santa Barbara*, 194 P (2) 148. A permit was granted to drill for oil. “It fixed no time as to when work was to be commenced or as to when the work was to be finished, its concluding sentence reading:

“This license terminates .....

The blank was never filled in. P 150.

In a written Memorandum of Opinion the trial judge stated (P 152)

“That since the permit was silent upon the question of how soon appellant was required to commence drilling operations, it had a reasonable time in which

to proceed . . .”

At page 156, the court said the license or permit . . . is itself the permission and contains the conditions with which the permittee must comply in order to lawfully drill, and at Page 152 said:

“If the permittee does nothing beyond obtaining the permit or fails to comply with reasonable terms or conditions granted the proper authorities may revoke it.”

The last case cited by Appellant under Point No. 1, *Atlas v. Dick*, 81 NYS (2) 126 (1948) appears to have been reversed on appeal to the Appellant division. See 86 NYS (2) 231.

The following are cases in which the permittee failed to heed or comply with conditions of the permit and ordinances.

*Lindell Co. v. Board of Permit Appeals of City and County of San Francisco*, 144 P (2) 4. California, (1943). Rehearing denied January 13, 1944. The defendant passed an emergency ordinance authorizing the waiver of health, safety and fire regulations pertaining to home construction during the war emergency. The plaintiff, under the ordinance, secured permission from the Federal Housing Authority to erect homes in a residential area, acquired the property and obtained a permit and prepared to erect 31 single family dwellings. On July 29, 1943, 27 permits and 4 others were granted to the plaintiff by the Central Permit Bureau and petitioner promptly started construction work, purchasing and moving materials on to the property, hiring and assembling

workmen and laying foundations for the buildings as specified. On August 4, 1943, a home owner near said tract took an appeal from the action of Central Permit Bureau in issuing permits, to the Board of Permit Appeals. The Board affirmed the action of the Permit Bureau and petitioner continued its construction work. Protestants filed petition for rehearing on September 4, which was heard on September 22, 1943, and on September 22, the board reversed its prior ruling and ordered the cancellation of all 31 permits. The plaintiff thereupon took an appeal directly to the court for a writ of mandamus commanding the reinstatement of the 31 permits and pointed out the expenditures made by him pursuant to the permits granted him.

The court, after discussing the propriety of the procedure by writ of mandate and the authority given the Board of Permit Appeals pointed out the following language in the permit:

“This permit issued subject to appeal within 10 days to Board of Permit Appeals. Incur no expense under this permit until right of appeal had lapsed.”

It also pointed out a provision of the ordinance providing “permitting discussion by the Board of Permit Appeals.” Despite the plaintiff’s appeal that an emergency for housing existed, that prompt construction work was necessary and funds expended, the court upheld the action of the Board of Permit Appeals in cancelling all of the permits previously issued, discharged the alternative writ and a peremptory writ was denied.

Also to Selligman, et al., v. Western and Southern Life Insurance company, Kentucky, 1938 126 SW (2)

419. In this case the building inspector issued a permit for a garage building on February 7, 1948, and work was begun immediately. On March 21, 1938, the building inspector issued a stop order, for failure to observe conditions in the permit, Re: Re-locate entrances, side line requirements and architecture conformity. The builder appealed to the Board of Adjustment and Appeals from the stop order. The Board upheld the stop order, denied the appeal from which order the builder prosecuted an appeal to the Circuit Court. The Circuit Court adjudged that the building permit issued February, 1938, was in full force and effect and the builder was authorized to complete the building of the garage pursuant to the permit. The Court of Appeals of Kentucky reversed the Circuit Court and justified the building inspector in stopping the work. The builder insisted that the building inspector could not lawfully revoke the permit because large sums of money were spent in reliance on it. Authorities are cited on Page 425 of the decision. The Court took the view that the builder did not acquire vested rights which could not be lost.

Also to *State v. Turgeon, Ohio, (1947) 77 NE (2) 283*. Defendant purchased real estate and on the same day secured a business permit. An ordinance read in part, "After permit has been issued same may be revoked if work for such permit is not commenced in six (6) months from issue." Failing to commence work the city revoked permit. A new ordinance was enacted making business use non-conforming. Defendant filed application for second permit, was refused. Mandamus ordering issuance of permit reversed.



Also Vincent Petroleum Corporation v. Culver City, 111 P (2) 433, California (1941). Plaintiff spent \$68,000.00 under a permit to drill for oil. Defendant granted several extensions of the permit, the last one up to May 30, 1937, on the condition the well be placed on commercial production before that date. Plaintiff failed to do this, permit was cancelled.

In Godson v. Town of Surfside, 8 So. (2) 497, Florida (1942) a permit issued with the condition imbedded thereon "that it might be revoked at any time upon violation of any provision of . . . ordinances or change in plans, etc. . . ." Plaintiff began construction. Defendant cancelled permit as completed building would stand partly within a prohibited distance of Atlantic Ocean in violation of city ordinance.

Harper v. Jonesboro, 22 SE 139, Georgia, (1894). Permit issued on condition no obstruction or sidewalk, nor covering requiring posts. Plaintiff failed to observe and defendant revoked permit.

Publicity Leasing Company v. Ludwig, 158 NYS 208 (1916). February, 1914, got permit to erect a large sign. May, 1914, city adopted new ordinance limiting size of signs. Plaintiff's signs were built at cost of \$1300.00. Expenditures did not create vested right, permit cancelled.

See Stringham v. Salt Lake City, Utah, (1949) 201 P (2) 758 where license reserved right in city to revoke, which it did despite heavy investment in signs by licensees.

IN ANSWER TO APPELLANT'S POINT NO. 2  
Re: Vested right not lost when national emergency prevented obtaining materials.

The war emergency legislation which Appellant claimed prevented him obtaining materials was enacted in 1942 and in effect more than 3 years before Appellant made application for permit.

He was a carpenter and knew there were shortages in materials and a priority necessary when he applied for the permit, and before any money was expended received a permit which advised him of time requirements and compliance with city ordinance.

That the Appellant acquired in 1945 steel tanks, described by respondents' witness as "critically short," (Tr. 38) and pipe, difficult to obtain. (Tr. 32, 36)

That after purchase of pipe in the summer of 1946, appellant did nothing whatsoever looking toward construction until two toilets and wash basins were bought in the fall of 1947, and then nothing whatsoever again until application for a new permit October 13, 1948. Par. 13 of Findings and Exh. I, show commercial construction that was completed before and after priorities were lifted. Those completed after July 25, 1947, were finished when materials were on a "first come, first served" basis. (Tr. 70)

Authority cited by Appellant, *National Yeast Corporation v. City of Crystal Lake* (Page 11 of Appellant's brief) concerned an agreement made November 10, 1939, for conditions of renewal of an option in 1944. Parties were entitled to relief as war conditions could not have been anticipated in 1939.

Under facts of present case, material, controls and shortages were existing when permit issued and project was undertaken. Neither war, emergency legislation nor



shortages were unexpected conditions which prevented construction.

In *National Lumber Products Company vs. Ponzio*, New Jersey, (1945) 42 A (2) 753, plaintiff claimed undue hardship as he was engaged in fulfilling a war contract and sought exception to the zoning requirements. At page 756 court observes that plaintiff undertook war work with full knowledge of its equipment on hand and knew, or was charged with knowing, he could not enlarge the non-conforming use. Despite such factual and legal knowledge plaintiff apparently chose to take a chance and installed its equipment.

War emergencies no justification for suspending operation of ordinance.

*Wilkins v. San Bernardino, et al*, Calif. (1946) 175 P (2) 542.

### IN ANSWER TO APPELLANT'S POINT NO. 3

City had power to renew . . .

Respondents' Point A is that Board of City Commission had no authority to grant exception to ordinance by renewing permit or otherwise, and reference is made to Point A for further response to Appellant's Point No. 3.

Ordinance 246 made service station at Appellant's lot a non-conforming use; any action by City Commission by resolution or otherwise to vary ordinance would be illegal.

Function of Board of Examiners and Appeals re-

ferred to by Appellant on Page 13 of brief, was to determine suitability of alternate materials and types of construction. (Fdgs. Par. 11) No authority to renew permits, override Building Inspector's denial of permit nor authorize issuance of permit for non-conforming use was among powers granted and if City Commission was acting for Board of Examiners and Appeals as Appellant suggests on Page 13, it would be limited to determining alternate materials.

The City Commission, by Ordinance 144, adopting a building code fixed the conditions for loss of permit and issuance of a new permit. (Fdgs. Par. 3) Old permit expired by limitation if work suspended for 60 days. Before work could be recommended a new permit had to be obtained issuable on payment of one-half fee providing:

A. No changes in plans and specifications.

B. That suspension had not exceeded one year.

Application failed to qualify on both conditions, having changed the plans and specifications, (Fdgs. Par. 10) and having suspended work more than 1 year. (Fdgs. Par. 4. Conc. Par. 6)

Giordano v. Mayor and Council of Borough of Dumont, New Jersey, (1948) 61 A (2) 245. The plaintiff failed to commence work in 1 year as permit required. Thereafter enactment of an ordinance making the use non-conforming, obtained a second permit and claimed it was an extension of the first permit. The lower court held that appellant obtained an extension of his permit, but the court of Errors and Appeals held at Page 246 that the first permit expired by its own limitation and having

thus expired, was not susceptible of extension or renewal after its expiration.

#### IN ANSWER TO APPELLANT'S POINT NO. 4

Abandonment is made up of act and intent, Vol. I, Words and Phrases, Page 39., Peal vs. Gulf Red Cedar Company of California, Calif., (1936) 59 P (2) 183, and intent must be gathered from facts and circumstances of the case.

A matter of intent should be determined by the Court in its conclusions. The Court found in Paragraph 4 of Findings that Appellant failed to comply with time requirements of permit, that a great many people did find materials and did construction. Paragraph 12 of Findings and Appellant's testimony showed he made no inquiry for materials, even after lifting of priorities and materials were on a "first come, first served basis." The Court properly concluded the Appellant abandoned the construction.

Whether the Appellant abandoned the construction or not is not vital in this case, as the conditions of the permit did not require abandonment for permit to be void, only suspension of work (Exhibit A, Findings Par. 3) and Building Code specified suspension *or* abandonment to void permit.

#### RESPONDENTS' POINT NO. A

CITY HAD NO AUTHORITY TO ISSUE PERMIT "IN EXCEPTION TO ORDINANCE," OR GRANT RENEWAL OF PERMIT, AND CITY COMMISSION ACTED ILLEGALLY IN ATTEMPTING TO DO SO.

Cities and towns received power to enact ordinances regulating zoning by Title 15, Article 3, Utah Code Annotated, 1943. Section 15-8-95 provides for the appointment of a Board of Adjustment, Section 15-8-101, Utah Code Annotated, 1943, provides in part as follows:

“(2) To hear and decide special exceptions to the terms of the ordinance upon which such board is required to pass under such ordinance. (3) To authorize upon appeal such variance from the terms of the ordinance as will not be contrary to the public interest, where owing to special conditions a literal enforcement of the provisions of the ordinance will result in unnecessary hardship; PROVIDED, that the spirit of the ordinance shall be observed and substantial justice done.”

Pursuant to these sections Ogden City enacted its ordinance No. 41-17, Board of Adjustment, which ordinance is attached to the complaint herein and by reference made a part thereof. That ordinance reads in part as follows:

“Said board shall adopt rules, subject to the provisions of the laws of the State of Utah in such case made and provided, for the regulation of its procedure and conduct of its duties and shall have power to hear and decide special exceptions to the terms of this ordinance in specific cases where a variance from the terms of this ordinance will not be contrary to the public interest, where owing to special conditions a literal enforcement of the provisions of the ordinance will result in any unnecessary hardship . . .” (Complaint 016, and Tr. 3)

The Appellant here made no appeal to the Board of Adjustment but made his request directly to the City Commission. That the governing body of the city is without authority to grant an exception to an ordinance is held in the following cases :

In *Lynch v. The Borough of Hillsdale, et al*, in the Supreme Court of New Jersey, (1947) 54 A (2) 723, the governing body of the Borough of Hillsdale adopted a resolution purporting to grant to the defendant permission to "change the use" of a building to a non-conforming use in violation of an existing ordinance. The property owner alleges that said governing body "can do by resolution whatever the Board of Adjustment is authorized to do." The court rejects this contention and states as follows :

"The determination of the question of variance and special exceptions has been confined by the legislature to the specialized judgment of the zoning board."

The action of the governing body in attempting to grant an exception to the ordinance was a wholly ineffective exercise of the local legislative power.

As stated in *Walton v. Tracy Loan and Trust Co.*, 97 Utah 249, 92 Pacific (2) 724. Our Supreme Court stated as follows :

The municipality is a creation, a creature of the legislature. It has only such powers as are granted to it by the state and such as are necessary are reasonably implied to enable it to perform the duties and functions and exercise the privileges conferred upon it.



Authority to grant exceptions to the ordinance was extended by the Utah State Legislature and by city ordinance only to the Board of Adjustment.

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